
EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
PENNS PLACE
PETERSFIELD
HAMPSHIRE 
GU31 4EX

Telephone: 01730 266551
Website: www.easthants.gov.uk

AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Tuesday 24 September 2019  

Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX

Membership:   Councillor B Bentley (Chairman)

Councillors T Denton (Vice-Chairman), K Budden, K Carter, P Wigman and 
A Williams

Reserve: Counicllor T Maroney

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

David Brown
Monitoring Officer

Date of Publication: 16 September 2019

Contact Officer: Cynthia Haveron 01730 234092
Email:  cynthia.haveron@easthants.gov.uk



Page
1 Apologies for Absence  

To receive apologies for absence.

2 Chairman's Announcements  

3 Declarations of Interest  

To receive and record any declarations of interest.

4 EH Commercial Services Ltd - Update  

The committee will receive a report on the actions of the EH 
Commercial Services Ltd following the Limited Assurance received.

For Information

1 - 22

5 Internal Audit Progress Report 2019-20 (August 2019)  

For Noting

23 - 36

6 Internal Audit - an Introduction  

The Committee will receive a training/briefing session on the work of 
Internal Audit and the Audit Committee.

7 Exclusion of the Press & Public  

RECOMMENDED that the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following item as:

a) It is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted, or the nature of the proceedings, that if members 
of the public were present during that item there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information s specified in Part 1 
of Schedule 12A (as amended) to the Local Government Act 
1972; and

b) In all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.

PART 2 (Confidential Items - closed to the public)



iii

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073.

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend and observe the meetings. 
Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to make deputations on 
matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this procedure and for further 
information please get in touch with the contact officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO.

No Smoking Policy

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and ground

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


iv

.



Page 1 of 3

NON EXEMPT

             
EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Audit Committee 24 September 2019

EH Commercial Services Ltd
Chris, Bradley, Managing Director

FOR INFORMATION

Portfolio: Portfolio Holder for Commercial Development
                  Cllr R Millard

Executive Director: None

Key Decision: No

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 This report is submitted to Audit Committee for information as 
requested by the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 This report is for information, there are no formal recommendations. 

3.0 Executive Summary

3.1 As part of the agreed Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19, an audit was 
undertaken to provide reasonable assurance that an adequate and 
effective control framework for the administration of EH Commercial 
Services Ltd.

3.2 The Assurance Opinion was ‘Limited’, Indicating significant weakness 
identified in the framework of internal control and / or compliance with 
the control framework which could place the achievement of system 
objectives at risk.  A copy of the audit report and actions completed is 
provided at Appendix 1.

3.3 All management actions have been completed, less for the recruitment 
of a Finance Assistant as detailed in Observation 3.  As the company 
grows this post will be prioritised for recruitment.



Page 2 of 3

4.0 Additional Budgetary Implications 

4.1 The company is self-funding, delivering an excellent value for money, 
high quality and effective non-stutory service.  Helping to improve the 
environment for the community and local business.

5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and 
Directorate Business Plan/s

5.1 The company was formed as part of the councils financial and 
commercial strategy in response to public demand, market failure by 
the private sector and financial pressures on the council. 

5.2 EH Commercial Services Ltd (EHCS) is a Local Authority Trading 
Company and was incorporated in 2016 as EHDC’s first wholly owned 
trading company.

5.3 The purpose of the EHCS is to help improve the environment, through 
the provision of ethical litter enforcement services.

5.4 Governance of the company is exercised through the Council’s 
Shareholder Committee.  Controls available to the committee include:
 Articles and Memorandum of Association
 Reserved matters
 Appointment and dismissal of Company Directors
 Appointment of external auditors
 Approval of Business Plans
 Committee meetings, currently two per annum

5.5 The company is a rapidly growing ‘start up’ and the audit provide a 
useful opportunity to review, reflect and update its policies, procedures 
and documentation.

6.0 Options considered and reasons for the recommendation

6.1 This paper is for information, no options have been considered.

7.0 Resource Implications

7.1 Financial Implications. None for EHDC

7.2 Human Resources Implications.  None for EHDC

7.3 Other Resource Implication.  EH Commercial Services Ltd has created 
15 new jobs and will recruit in line with growth.



Page 3 of 3

8.0 Legal Implications

8.1 Specialist external legal advice has been received, confirming the 
current arrangements are in line with legislative requirements.  This 
legal advice has been passed to the monitoring officer.  

9.0 Risks

9.1 The only outstanding risk identified by the audit is Observation 3, a 
potential single point of failure in finance. As detailed in the audit, 
mitigation actions have been put in place and recruitment will take 
place in line with growth.  

10 Consultation

10.1 No consultations required

11 Communication

11.1 There are no communications required

Appendix:

1. EHDC Internal Audit Report, Commercial Activities (2018/19), dated 24 
Jul 19.

Agreed and signed off by:

Monitoring Officer: 16 September 2019
S151 Officer: 16 September 2019

Contact Officer: Chris Bradley
Job Title: Managing Director
Telephone: 07403 020 255
E-Mail: chris.bradley@easthants.gov.uk





  
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 East Hampshire District 
Council 

 Internal Audit Report 
  
 Commercial Activities (2018/19) 
  
 Date of Report: 24th July 2019 
  
 Prepared by: M Norton 
  
  
 FINAL REPORT 
 Confidential 

 

 

 



                                                                   EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

 

 Page 2  
  

1. Introduction 

1.1 As part of the agreed Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19, we have undertaken a review 
of EHDC Commercial Activities. 

1.2 The scope of this review was to provide reasonable assurance that an adequate and 
effective control framework for the administration of EH Commercial Services Ltd is 
in place, the Council's first wholly owned trading company.  The review looked at 
the financial and related operational systems being used by EH Commercial 
Services.  It has reviewed, where appropriate, financial returns made by the 
Company.   

1.3 EHCS is a small start-up company undergoing rapid growth.  Currently turning over 
under £0.5M per annum, directly employing 12 people.  The purpose of the 
Company is to help improve the environment, through the provision of ethical litter 
enforcement services.  The services are provided to EHDC and other Councils, 
funded through a proportion of the revenue from Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs), with 
any surplus being returned to the public purse. 

1.4 We are grateful to all staff involved for their assistance during the course of the 
audit. 

2. Objectives 

2.1  This review has sought to assess the effectiveness of controls in place focusing on 
those designed to mitigate risk in achieving the following key objectives: 
 

 appropriate accounting records have been properly kept throughout the 
financial year; 

 good value is obtained for expenditure incurred, payments are supported by 
invoices, payments are made promptly and VAT is appropriately accounted for; 

 accounting statements prepared during the year are prepared on the correct 
accounting basis (receipts and payments or income and expenditure), agreed to 
the cash book, supported by an adequate audit trail from underlying records and 
where appropriate debtors and creditors are properly recorded; 

 costs are kept within budgets which are set in advance, challenged and 
approved at an appropriate level and the actual levels of income and 
expenditure are monitored and reported against them on a regular basis; 

 expected income is fully received, based on correct prices, properly recorded 
and promptly banked; and VAT is appropriately accounted for; 

 recruitment and induction processes are adequate, employees are paid correctly 
and promptly, deductions are made and paid across to HMRC /Pensions provider 
on an accurate and timely basis; and 

 EH Commercial Services assets are recorded appropriately and are properly 
maintained. 



                                                                   EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

 

 Page 3  
  

 
3. Circulation List 

3.1 This document has been circulated to the following: 
 Gill Kneller – Chief Executive 
 Lydia Morrison - Chief Financial Officer and Director of Corporate Resources 
 Andrew Clarke – Deputy Section 151 Officer) 
 Chris Bradley - Head of Commercial Development 
 Natalie Meagher – Service Director for Operations and Neighbourhood 

 
 

  

 

The Southern Internal Audit Partnership conforms to the IIA’s professional 
standards and its work is performed in accordance with the International 
Professional Practices Framework (endorsed by the IIA). 



                                                                   EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

 

 Page 4  
  

 
4. Summary Findings 

 
 

Assurance Opinion 

 
Limited 

 

 

 
Significant weakness identified in the framework of 
internal control and / or compliance with the control 
framework which could place the achievement of system 
objectives at risk. 

 

Recommended Action(s) 

High 2 

Medium 11 

Low 2 

Total 15 
 

Key Observations 

 
Areas assessed to be working well/controls are effective 
 
 Accounting statements and other documents required by the Companies Act 

2006 have been approved and submitted in the correct format and on a timely 
basis by EH Commercial Services. 

 Appropriate accounting records are being held for all company transactions 
within Sage.  VAT relating to income and expenditure is being appropriately 
accounted for. 

 Budgets for EH Commercial Services are set in advance, in conjunction with an 
Annual Business Plan, and income and expenditure are monitored and 
reported on a regular basis throughout the year. 

 Individual Client contracts are monitored and assessed for on-going 
profitability, which has resulted in a revised approach being planned for future 
contract arrangements to reduce the risk of loss to the Company. 

 EH Commercial Services record all fixed assets and account for them 
appropriately.  

 EH Commercial Services have key organisational HR policies and procedures 
and provide these to new staff. 

 Adequate controls are in place for the accuracy of staff payments and 
deductions for direct employees of EH Commercial Services, and the 
submission of Income Tax, National Insurance and Pensions contributions to 
HMRC and NEST. 

 



                                                                   EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

 

 Page 5  
  

Areas where the framework of governance, risk management and control could 
be improved 

 The roles, responsibilities, operational procedures and scheme of delegation 
for EH Commercial Services have not been fully documented and there are 
potential internal control and business continuity risks due to the reliance 
upon a single officer. 

 Income and expenditure for EH Commercial Services is being processed 
through the EHDC financial systems, impacting the transparency of the 
Company operating as a separate business entity. 

 Payments are made by the Clients to EHDC and recharged by EH Commercial 
Services to ensure Teckal compliance, however further legal assurance should 
be obtained regarding this approach. 

 Assigned representatives are in place with each Client authority, participating 
in the litter enforcement scheme, with the exception of EHDC who do not 
currently have an appointed representative that is independent of the 
Company. 

 The monthly recharge / contribution paid by EH Commercial Service to EHDC 
for services provided is not sufficiently detailed to confirm the basis of the 
calculation.  This could impact on the currency of management information 
and ability to demonstrate compliance with State Aid rules. 

 Recruitment and induction related tasks and training are not consistently 
recorded, and training has excluded the provision of Health and Safety training 
for new employees.  

 Access to the SIDEM FPN system is not adequately restricted and reviewed on 
a regular basis.  

 EH Commercial Services do not hold copies of the renewal documents to 
confirm that current Employers Liability, Public Liability and Officers and 
Directors cover is in place. 

 

  



                                                                   EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

 

 Page 6  
  

5. Added Value 

5.1 One of the Core Principles that underpin the Professional Practice of Internal 
Auditing is to ‘promote organisational improvement’.  The Added Value section of 
the report provides insight; opportunities and collaborative learning (best practice) 
that the organisation may wish to consider moving forwards. We do not consider 
the issues raised in this section to adversely impact the control environment in the 
achievement of objectives reviewed. 
 

Added Value 

This audit was requested by management and has been completed at an early 
stage of the Company’s existence to identify any issues arising around the financial 
management arrangements of EH Commercial Services.  The results of this review 
can be used to inform the governance and financial arrangements for any future 
commercial ventures. 



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 7  
  

Observation – 1 – Teckal Company Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date 

 
The contracts to provide enforcement services to other Local 
Authorities are held between the Client Authority and EHDC, not 
directly with EH Commercial Services.  EH Commercial Services only 
have a contract with EHDC.  Documentary evidence has not been 
provided to confirm that the current arrangements are in line with 
legislative requirements for the Teckal exemption 
 
It is important that written legal assurance to confirm these 
arrangements is held by the company. 
 

There is a risk of legal 
challenge to the 
Teckal exemption  

Legal advice will be 
obtained and documented 
to confirm the current 
legislative requirements. 
The arrangements are that 
other local authorities 
delegate the relevant 
enforcement services to 
EHDC under a Section 101 
inter-agency agreement.  
EHDC contract EHCS to 
deliver those services 
using a Teckal exemption 
to public sector 
procurement regulations.  
As a wholly owned 
company of EHDC, limiting 
its work to the functions 
contracted to it by EHDC, 
means that EHCS meets 
the Teckal tests of 
ownership, control and 
function. 

High Chris Bradley Completed  
Legal advice 
received from 
Trowers & 
Hamlins 
confirms the 
model meets 
the legal 
requirements.  
The 
Monitoring 
Officer, Nick 
Leach can 
confirm this. 
 
 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management actions once fully implemented, should mitigate future risk 

  



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 8  
  

Observation – 2 – Procurement Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date 

 
Goods and services are being procured for EH Commercial Services 
through the EHDC finance system and subsequently repaid to EHDC by 
EH Commercial Services. 
 
The accuracy and timeliness of the invoices being raised between EHDC 
and EH Commercial Services, to repay goods procured through EHDC, is 
dependent upon the Commercial Business Partner identifying all 
payments made by EHDC on behalf of EH Commercial Services and 
promptly raising invoices for the same amount. 
 
A review of several supplier invoices indicated that the payment from 
EH Commercial Services to EHDC can be up to 4 months after the 
raising of the initial supplier invoice.  A review of available 
documentation confirmed that the audit trail of documentation to 
support expenditure by EH Commercial Services is complicated when 
goods and services are initially purchased through EHDC and 
subsequently recharged to EH Commercial Services. 

EH Commercial 
Services not being 
perceived as a 
separate business 
entity and gaining an 
unfair advantage in 
terms of prices 
obtained and 
contractual 
obligations from 
suppliers. 
Recharges not being 
raised or delayed to 
the financial 
advantage of EH 
Commercial Services.  

As a wholly owned 
company of EHDC, why 
would EHCS not 
leveraging the buying 
power of its parent 
organisation to the 
deliver best value for 
money to the public 
purse? 
 
Delays in the 
implementation of the 
Capita finance/IT system, 
caused significant delays 
and risk to EHCS and 
other EHDC departments  
 
EHCS will review its 
suppliers and where 
appropriate seek direct 
relationships. 
 
EHCS will work with EHDC 
to clarify and improve the 
invoicing process. 

Low Tim Miller Completed 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management action once implemented should mitigate future risk 



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 9  
  

 

Observation – 3 – Single Point of Failure Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target 
Date 

 
It has been acknowledged that the Commercial Business Partner is a 
potential 'single point of failure', responsible for all financial reporting 
and income collection arrangements.  There are a number of 
spreadsheets that can be referred to for some of the specific tasks 
carried out for these areas, but no formal procedure notes. 
 
A review of The Commercial Business Partner job description 
confirmed that it only contained generic duties relating to New 
Venture based projects, the specific roles and responsibilities 
performed by them for EC Commercial Services are not documented. 

Business Continuity 
risks in the absence of 
officers and their 
personal 
organisational 
knowledge leading to 
key roles and 
responsibilities not 
being undertaken. 

There is always a risk in a 
small organisation and this 
has been added to the risk 
register. 

Medium Chris Bradley Completed 

Appropriate passwords and 
notes held securely by 
Operations Manager 
 

Medium Tim Miller Completed 

Consider recruitment of 
Finance assistant when 
funds available expected 
financial year 20/21.  In 
mean time some residual 
risk has to be accepted. 
 

Medium Chris Bradley 31/03/20 

Identify agencies and costs 
for temporary Finance staff 
at short notice 
 

Medium Tim Miller Completed 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management actions once fully implemented should mitigate future risk 

  



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 
10 

 
  

 

Observation – 4 – Recharging of Costs Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target 
Date 

 
The calculation for the recharge between EHDC and EH Commercial 
Services is included within the EH Commercial Services Company Result 
spread sheet. 
 
However, a review of the recharge calculations on the 'State Aid Total' 
tab confirmed that they did not include specific details regarding the 
salary costs and on-costs for the Head of Commercial Development, 
Commercial Business Partner, Commercial Programme Manager and 
Commercial Manager (who were confirmed as being partly employed 
on EH Commercial Services duties). 
 
The review also confirmed that the recharge calculations did not 
specifically detail the EHDC support overhead costs incurred by EH 
Commercial Services (e.g. HR support, IT, accommodation (EH 
Commercial Services occupy offices at Penns Place and Havant Plaza)). 
 
It has also been confirmed with the Commercial Business Partner that 
the recharge amounts have varied based on the company’s cash flow 
and ability to pay. 
 

A lack of transparency 
regarding EH 
Commercial Services 
financial expenditure.  
Inability to 
demonstrate that 
State Aid is not being 
breached and that the 
Local Authority is 
charging commercial 
rates for all services, 
products or work that 
it provides to the 
Company. 

External specialist Legal 
advice has been received. 
While there is a sound 
argument that State Aid 
does not apply, the 
margins are thin.  Given 
‘benefits’ are well below 
the de-minims, EHCS will 
mitigate any risk to 
challenge by proceeding 
on the assumption that 
State Aid does apply. 
 
EHCS has been capturing 
‘benefits’ already but in 
the light of this decision 
the company will review 
its approach to capturing 
benefits.  This will include 
a review of the supply 
contract between EHDC 
and EHCS. 
 

Medium Tim Miller Completed 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management actions, once fully implemented, should mitigate future risk 

  



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 
11 

 
  

 

Observation – 5 – Client checks of FPN listings Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target 
Date 

 
Each Client Authority has a representative who should be sent the 
monthly list of FPNs by EH Commercial Services, to review and approve 
the payment.  However, a review of the list of Contract Management 
contacts for all Client Authorities confirmed that there is no current 
contact listed for EHDC.  This role was previously held by Michelle 
Green, however she is also partly employed by EH Commercial Services.  
The responsibility is due to be passed to the EHDC Enforcement 
Manager however the arrangement is not yet formally in place. 
 
EHDC should have an appointed contact officer to review the monthly 
FPN list from EH Commercial Services.  This officer should be 
independent of EH Commercial Services. 
 

EHDC do not 
independently verify 
FPN listings resulting 
in potential errors in 
going undetected.   

EHDC have appointed Ryan 
Gulliver as the appointed 
contact officer 

Medium Chris Bradley Completed 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management action has already been completed and should mitigate future risk 

  



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 
12 

 
  

 

Observation – 6 – Access to SIDEM Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target 
Date 

 
EH Commercial Services do not specifically review the user access rights 
on the SIDEM FPN system for each of the Client Authorities. 
 
A review of SIDEM user access rights for the HBC Client Officer for the 
EH Commercial Services contract confirmed that they also had access to 
FPNs issued for Chichester District Council.  It was also confirmed that 
two other HBC Client Officers had similar access.   
 
Following notification of this, EH Commercial Services arranged for the 
access to Chichester Council to be revoked for HBC officers and 
reviewed SIDEM access rights to each of the Client Authorities.   
 
Removal of SIDEM access for HBC Client Officers should be considered 
in the interest of data protection and clarity of roles between EHCS and 
Client Authorities. 
 

Breach of General 
Data Protection 
Regulations and 
potential fines 
through inappropriate 
access to Client 
Authority data. 

All clients will have access 
removed when we switch 
to the new servers in Feb 
19, subject to supplier 
delivering on time. 

Medium Michelle 
Green 

Completed 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management action once implemented should mitigate future risk 

 

  



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 
13 

 
  

 

Observation – 7 – Cancellations of FPN’s Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target 
Date 

 
There is no formal scheme of delegation for decision making and 
authorisation of cancellations, write offs and expenditure for EH 
Commercial Services. 
 
All officers with "Full" access to SIDEM have the ability to cancel FPNs.  
A review of system access rights confirmed that these officers included 
three EH Commercial Services officers and one EHDC officer.  There is 
guidance in place and cases are usually discussed with other EH 
Commercial Services officers in the office, however there is no formal 
cancellation process including an additional officer approval for the 
decision. 
 
 

Inappropriate 
cancellations / 
cancellations made in 
error.  A lack of clarity 
on levels of 
accountability for 
decision making. 

New scheme of delegation 
to be created 

Medium Chris Bradley Completed 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management action once implemented should mitigate future risk 

  



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 
14 

 
  

 

Observation – 8 – Recruitment, induction and training Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target 
Date 

 
There is a starter pack of key documents issued to all new employees.  
However, there is no recruitment checklist on the personnel file to 
ensure that all key documents are obtained or key checks have been 
carried out.  In one sample case tested, there is no evidence of 'right to 
work' checks being documented. 
 
Although there is an induction checklist, it is out of date.  A review of a 
sample personnel file confirmed that, although the officer had been 
employed for a month, none of the induction courses on the checklists 
had been completed.  Some items on the induction checklist are either 
not provided and/or are no longer relevant e.g. EHDC have previously 
provided Health and Safety & 'Conflict Resolution' training.  This 
training is no longer being provided by EHDC to EH Commercial Services 
and is currently unresolved.  According to the EH Commercial Services 
H&S Policy "Staff will be given a health and safety induction and 
provided with appropriate safety training"). 
 
The induction task / training checklists should be revised to ensure that 
they only contain key tasks and training and that these are completed 
on a timely basis by all new employees in line with company policies. 
 

Failure to ensure that 
‘right to work’ criteria 
are met, resulting in 
possible fines.  
Failure to meet Health 
and Safety 
requirements, 
resulting in employee 
injuries, financial loss 
and reputational 
damage. 

Health & Safety at Work 
policy has been reviewed 
 

High Chris Bradley Completed 

Full review and update of 
induction and training 
process including Health & 
Safety at Work and right to 
work. 

Medium Michelle 
Green (new 
Ops manager) 

Completed 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management actions once fully implemented should mitigate future risk 

  



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 
15 

 
  

 

Observation – 9 – Business Continuity Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target 
Date 

 
Only the Commercial Business Partner has access to the EH Commercial 
Services Sage system, which could create a business continuity issue.  In 
addition, another EH Commercial Services officer may have access to his 
user account and password, which creates an IT security issue. 
 
This limited access to the Sage system also impacts on the separation of 
duties and ability for management to monitor officer activities.  Chris 
Bradley is involved in countersigning claim forms and authorising 
payments on the RBS Bankline system, but does not have the ability to 
specifically review the details on the Sage system.  
 

Business Continuity 
issues relating to the 
ability to maintain 
and monitor financial 
activities, leading to 
out of date financial 
management 
information used to 
inform decisions. 
IT security breach. 
Increased risk of error 
or fraud being 
prevented or 
undetected. 
 

Review Business Continuity 
plans 
 

Medium Chris Bradley Completed 

Chris Bradley & Michelle 
Green have access to Sage 

Medium Chris Bradley Completed 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management actions once fully implemented should mitigate future risk 

 

  



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 
16 

 
  

 

Observation – 10 – Insurance Risk 
Management Recommendation 

Action Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Target 
Date 

 
Employers Liability, Public Liability and Directors Liability insurance 
cover have been obtained for EH Commercial Services.  However, it has 
been confirmed that EH Commercial Services do not hold copies of the 
renewal documents to confirm that current cover is in place 
(Employers Liability, Public Liability and Officers & Directors cover 
expired 31/03/18). 
 

Insurance policies are 
not renewed, 
exposing the 
company and its 
Directors to a 
financial impact from 
any claims arising. 

Acquire copies of 
Insurance documents from 
Capita 

Low Tim Miller Completed 

Auditors assessment of managements response 

Management action has already been completed and should mitigate future risk 

  



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 
17 

 
  

Appendix 1 – Definitions of Assurance Levels and Management Recommendations 
 

We use the following levels of assurance and prioritisations in our audit reports: 
 

Assurance Opinion Framework of governance, risk management and management control 

Substantial  A sound framework of internal control is in place and is operating effectively. No risks to the achievement of 
system objectives have been identified. 

Adequate  Basically a sound framework of internal control with opportunities to improve controls and / or compliance with 
the control framework. No significant risks to the achievement of system objectives have been identified. 

Limited  Significant weakness identified in the framework of internal control and / or compliance with the control 
framework which could place the achievement of system objectives at risk. 

No Fundamental weakness identified in the framework of internal control or the framework is ineffective or absent 
with significant risks to the achievement of system objectives. 

 

Management 
Recommendation Current risk 

High Priority 
A significant risk of; failure to achieve objectives; fraud or impropriety; system breakdown; loss; or qualification 
of the accounts by the organisation’s external auditors.  Such risk could lead to adverse impact on the 
organisation or expose the organisation to criticism. 

Medium Priority A serious, but not immediate risk of: failure to achieve objectives; system breakdown; or loss. 

Low Priority Areas that individually have no major impact, but where management would benefit from improved risk 
management and / or have the opportunity to achieve greater efficiency and / or effectiveness. 

 
 
 
 



     EHDC Commercial Activities (18/19) 

  Page 
18 

 
  

Assignment – Progress Control Sheet 

 Assignment stage Assignment Progress Comments 

 Audit Outline Issued 15/05/2018 Agreed 25/05/2018  

 Fieldwork commenced Target 21/05/2018 Actual 31/05/2018  

 Fieldwork completed Target 18/06/2018 Actual 20/06/2018  

 Close of audit meeting Target 02/07/2018 Actual 16/07/2018  

 Draft Report Issued Target1 16/07/2018 Actual 27/09/2018 & 
23/10/2018 

Additional information / testing 
requested at close of audit meeting.   

 Factual accuracy agreed and 
management response provided 

Requested2 11/10/2018 Provided 07/12/2018 & 
04/02/2019 

 

 Draft final report issued Target3 11/02/2019 Actual 06/02/2019 & 
08/07/2019 

Resolving queries following receipt of 
initial responses 

 Senior management sign-off Requested4 15/07/2019 Provided 24/07/2019  

 Final report issued Target5 26/07/2019 Actual 24/07/2019  

 

1 Within 10 working days of close of audit meeting 
2 Within 10 working days of draft report issued 
3 Within 5 working days of receipt of management response 
4 Within 5 working days of draft final report issued 
5 Within 2 working days of senior management sign-off 
 



Appendix 1

Internal Audit Progress Report

August 2019

East Hampshire District Council

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=borders&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&docid=XfJj4PGlJiPolM&tbnid=F6iHD2lTLAvU_M:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.w3.org/TR/css3-background/&ei=VXluU8TGIuas0QX_v4GQDg&bvm=bv.66330100,d.d2k&psig=AFQjCNFjqQeE0iVc7yzgZmV2Y5Xub90ptQ&ust=1399835121919138
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=borders&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&docid=XfJj4PGlJiPolM&tbnid=F6iHD2lTLAvU_M:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.w3.org/TR/css3-background/&ei=VXluU8TGIuas0QX_v4GQDg&bvm=bv.66330100,d.d2k&psig=AFQjCNFjqQeE0iVc7yzgZmV2Y5Xub90ptQ&ust=1399835121919138


Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             2                                                                                                       

Contents:

1. Role of Internal Audit 3

2. Purpose of report 4

3. Performance dashboard  5

4. Status of ‘live’ reports 6 – 8

5. Executive summaries ‘Limited’ and ‘No’ assurance opinions 9

6. Fraud and Irregularities 9

7. Planning and resourcing 10

8. Rolling work programme 10-14



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             3                                                                                                       

1. Role of Internal Audit

The requirement for an internal audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, 
which states that a relevant body must:

‘Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.’ 

The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards – updated 2017].

The role of internal audit is best summarised through its definition within the Standards, as an: 

The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management processes, control systems, accounting records and 
governance arrangements.  Internal audit plays a vital role in advising the Council that these arrangements are in place and operating 
effectively.  

The Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead to the strengthening of the control environment and, therefore, contribute to the 
achievement of the organisation’s objectives.

‘Independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisations operations.  It helps an 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes’. 



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             4                                                                                                       

2. Purpose of report

In accordance with proper internal audit practices (Public Sector Internal Audit Standards), and the Internal Audit Charter the Chief Internal 
Auditor is required to provide a written status report to ‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’, summarising:

The status of ‘live’ internal audit reports;

an update on progress against the annual audit plan;

a summary of internal audit performance, planning and resourcing issues; and

a summary of significant issues that impact on the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual opinion.

Internal audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management, 
control and governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives of the service area under review.  Assurance opinions 
are categorised as follows:

Substantial A sound framework of internal control is in place and operating effectively.  No risks to the achievement of system 
objectives have been identified.

Adequate Basically a sound framework of internal control with opportunities to improve controls and / or compliance with the control 
framework.  No significant risks to the achievement of system objectives have been identified.

Limited Significant weakness identified in the framework of internal control and / or compliance with the control framework which 
could place the achievement of system objectives at risk.

No Fundamental weaknesses identified in the framework of internal control or the framework is ineffective or absent with 
significant risk to the achievement of system objectives.



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             5                                                                                                       

3. Performance dashboard 

% of plan 
delivered 
(including 

carry forward)

9% 
Complete

51% Yet to 
Commence

40% Work 
in Progress

% Positive Customer Feedback

Actual 
99%

Target 
90%

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards / Local Government Application Note

An ‘External Quality Assessment’ of the Southern Internal Audit Partnership was undertaken by the 
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) in September 2015.  The report concluded: 

 ‘It is our view that the Southern Internal Audit Partnership ‘generally conforms’ (top grading) to all of 
the principles contained within the International Professional Practice Framework (IPPF); Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS); and the Local Government Application Note (LAGN). 

In accordance with PSIAS, a further self assessment was completed in April 2018 concluding that the 
Southern Internal Audit Partnership continues to comply with all aspects of the IPPF, PSIAS and LGAN.



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             6                                                                                                       

4. Status of ‘Live’ Reports

Management Actions
(‘High Priority’)

Audit Review Report 
Date

Audit 
Sponsor

Assurance 
Opinion

Reported Not 
Accepted

Pending Cleared Overdue

Information Governance * 26/04/17 HoPRQ Limited 18 (6) 0(0) 0 (0) 18 (6) 0 (0)

Disabled Facilities Grants * 28/09/17 HoENQ Adequate 8 (0) 0 (0) 0(0) 8(0) 0 (0)

NNDR 13/11/17 HoCS Adequate 2 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 1 (0) 1 (0)

Proactive Fraud Initiatives (Mobile 
Devices) * 18/12/17 HoPRQ Adequate 6 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 6 (0) 0 (0)

Parking 13/07/18 HoENQ Adequate 5 (2) 0 (0) 3 (1) 2 (1) 0 (0)

Commercial Property Investments * 02/08/18 SD (RP) Adequate 3 (2) 0 (0) 0 (0) 3 (2) 0 (0)

Traffic Management 25/01/19 HoENQ Adequate 6 (0) 0 (0) 2 (0) 4 (0) 0 (0)

Risk Management * 12/02/19 HoPRQ Adequate 2 (2) 0 (0) 0 (0) 2 (2) 0 (0)

Developers Obligations and 
Contributions 13/05/19 SD (RP) Adequate 4 (1) 0 (0) 2 (1) 2 (0) 0 (0)

Information Governance 28/05/19 HoPRQ Adequate 13 (0) 0 (0) 11 (0) 2 (0) 0 (0)

Main Accounting * 30/05/19 CFO Adequate 2 (2) 0 (0) 0 (0) 2 (2) 0 (0)

Financial Planning / Budgetary Control 30/05/19 CFO Adequate 4 (0) 0 (0) 4 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0)

Procurement 31/05/19 HoSC Adequate 8 (0) 0 (0) 6 (0) 2 (0) 0 (0)

Contract Management – Leisure 
Managed Service * 25/06/19 HoSC Limited 8 (1) 0 (0) 0 (0) 8 (1) 0 (0)



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             7                                                                                                       

Audit Review Report 
Date

Audit 
Sponsor

Assurance 
Opinion

Management Actions
(‘High Priority’)

Reported Not 
Accepted

Pending Cleared Overdue

Capital Programme / Project 
Management – Leisure Centres 25/06/19 HoSC Limited 6 (0) 0 (0) 1 (0) 5 (0) 0 (0)

Private Sector Housing 01/07/19 HoENQ Adequate 4 (0) 0 (0) 4 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0)

Land Charges 08/07/19 HoCS Adequate 3 (0) 0 (0) 2 (0) 1 (0) 0 (0)

Commercial Activities 24/07/19 HoCD Limited 15 (2) 0 (0) 1 (0) 14 (2) 0 (0)

*denotes audits where all actions have been completed since the last progress report



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             8                                                                                                       

Audit Sponsor

Head of Organisational Development HoOD

Head of Customer Services HoCS

Chief Finance Officer and Director of Corporate Services CFO

Head of Programmes, Redesign and Quality HoPRQ

Head of Development HoD

Head of Strategic Commissioning HoSC

Head of Property Services HoPS

Head of Enforcement and Neighbourhood Quality HoENQ

Head of Regeneration HoR

Service Director (Regeneration and Place) SD (RP)

Head of Commercial Development HoCD



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             9                                                                                                       

5. Executive Summaries of new reports published concluding a ‘Limited’ or ‘No’ assurance opinion

There are no new reports published concluding a ‘Limited’ or ‘No’ assurance opinion.

6. Fraud and Irregularities

In accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code 2015 there is a requirement on local authorities to publish the following 
information with regard counter fraud work:

Local Government Transparency Code 2015 

Part 2 Requirements - Fraud

01.04.19 – 31.07.19

Number of occasions powers under the Prevention of Social Housing Fraud (Power to Require Information) (England) 
Regulations 2014, or similar powers have been used Nil

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of employees undertaking investigations and prosecutions of fraud 3 fte*

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of professionally accredited counter fraud specialists 5 fte*

Total amount of time spent by the authority on the investigation and prosecution of fraud 3 days ***

Total number of fraud cases investigated 0**

*relates to internal audit staff across the wider SIAP only (does not include other areas of the Council that may affect reported figures i.e. legal, HR, Trading Standards, 
departmental investigating officers etc.)

**the definition of fraud is as set out by the Audit Commission in Protecting the Public Purse - ‘the intentional false representation, including failure to declare information 
or abuse of position that is carried out to make gain, cause loss or expose another to the risk of loss.’ 

***relates to SIAP staff only and includes time spent on proactive fraud initiatives to identify or prevent potential fraud that may not result in a formal investigation or 
prosecution.  



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             10                                                                                                       

7. Planning & Resourcing

The internal audit plan for 2019-20 was discussed by the Executive Board on 21 February 2019 and approved by the Governance, Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee on 14 March 2019.  

The audit plan remains fluid to provide a responsive service that reacts to the changing needs of the Council.  Progress against the plan is 
detailed within section 8

8. Rolling Work Programme

Audit Review Audit 
Sponsor

Scoping Audit 
Outline 
Issued

Fieldwork Draft 
Report 
Issued

Final 
Report 
Issued

Assurance 
Opinion

Tracker
( on schedule

 Delay)

Comment

Carry Forward Reviews

Commercial Activities HoSC      Limited  18/19 Opinion.

Accounts Payable CFO     Adequate 

18/19 Opinion. 
Capita actions 
outstanding

Accounts Receivable / 
Debt Management

CFO     Limited 

18/19 Opinion. 
Capita actions 
outstanding

De-Commissioning of 
Civica Financials

CFO      Substantial  18/19 Opinion

2019-20 Reviews



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             11                                                                                                       

Audit Review Audit 
Sponsor

Scoping Audit 
Outline 
Issued

Fieldwork Draft 
Report 
Issued

Final 
Report 
Issued

Assurance 
Opinion

Tracker
( on schedule

 Delay)

Comment

Corporate / Cross Cutting

Business Continuity 
Planning / Disaster 
Recovery

HoOD     Q2-3

Human Resources HoOD   Q3-4

Partnerships / 
Partnership Management

HoSC  Q4

Performance 
Management

HoPRQ  Q4

Project / Programme 
Management

HoSC  Q3-4

Health and Safety HoOD  Q3

Commercial Activities HoCD  Q3-4

Commercial Property 
Investments

HoCD     Q2-3

Contract Management 
Arrangements

HoSC  Q4



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             12                                                                                                       

Audit Review Audit 
Sponsor

Scoping Audit 
Outline 
Issued

Fieldwork Draft 
Report 
Issued

Final 
Report 
Issued

Assurance 
Opinion

Tracker
( on schedule

 Delay)

Comment

Financial Stability CFO  Q3

Corporate Governance

Information Governance HoPRQ  Q4

Cipfa/Tecaff Fraud Survey CFO n/a n/a  n/a n/a n/a  Survey submitted

National Fraud Initiatives CFO n/a n/a   On-going

Financial Management

Lease Income HoCD  Q3-4

Benefits HoCS    Q3

Income Collection and 
Banking

CFO  Q3

Accounts Payable CFO  Q3

Accounts Receivable / 
Debt Management

CFO  Q4

Treasury Management CFO  Q4

Payroll CFO   Q3-4

Reconciliations CFO  Q3



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             13                                                                                                       

Audit Review Audit 
Sponsor

Scoping Audit 
Outline 
Issued

Fieldwork Draft 
Report 
Issued

Final 
Report 
Issued

Assurance 
Opinion

Tracker
( on schedule

 Delay)

Comment

Information technology

Computer 
Implementations

HoPRQ  Q3

IT Security Governance HoPRQ  Q4

IT Asset Management HoPRQ   Q2-3

IT Risk Management HoPRQ  Q3

Corporate Objectives

Joint Environmental 
Services Contract (De-
commissioning)

HoSC     Q2

Norse South East - 
Governance 
Arrangements

HoSC     Q2-3

Norse South East - 
Transition / Mobilisation

HoSC     Q1-2

Environmental Health. HoENQ    Q2-3

Licensing HoENQ  Q4



Internal Audit Progress Report – August 2019

                                                                                                                             14                                                                                                       

Audit Review Audit 
Sponsor

Scoping Audit 
Outline 
Issued

Fieldwork Draft 
Report 
Issued

Final 
Report 
Issued

Assurance 
Opinion

Tracker
( on schedule

 Delay)

Comment

Animal Welfare 
(Licensing)

HoENQ   Q3-4


	Agenda
	4 EH Commercial Services Ltd - Update
	Appendix 1 - EHDC Commercial Activities 1819 - Final Report

	5 Internal Audit Progress Report 2019-20 (August 2019)

